
 

 

 
 

 

 

Welsh Harp Joint Consultative 
Committee 

 

Tuesday, 10 January 2012 at 7.30 pm 
Council Chamber, Brent Town Hall, Forty Lane, 
Wembley, HA9 9HD 

 
 
Membership: 
 
Members representing first alternates second alternates 
Councillors:  Councillors: Councillors: 
    
Hart (Vice-Chair) LB Barnet     
Johnson LB Barnet     
Khatri LB Barnet     
Rayner LB Barnet     
Ashraf (Chair) LB Brent Hashmi CJ Patel 
Kataria LB Brent J Moher Crane 
Mashari LB Brent Kabir John 
Singh LB Brent R Moher Hirani 
 
 
For further information contact: Joe Kwateng, Democratic Services Officer 
joe.kwateng@brent.gov.uk, (020) 8937 1354 
 
For electronic copies of minutes, reports and agendas, and to be alerted when the 
minutes of this meeting have been published visit: 

www.brent.gov.uk/committees 
 
The press and public are welcome to attend this meeting 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Membership continued: 
 
Member Organisation 
  
David Carter Brent Sports Council 
Leela O'Dea British Waterways 
Neale Hider Environment Agency 
Neil Winter Environment Agency 
Peter Castle Hendon Rifle Club 
A Jefferson Hendon Rifle Club 
Klaus Schuricht Hendon Rifle Club 
Molly Savage Local Agenda 21 
Clive Cohen London Wildlife Trust 
Kate Mitchell Natural England 
Jon Bell Princes Park Youth Football Club 
Commander G F Beck MBE Training Ship Broadsword 
Dr Leo Batten Welsh Harp Conservation Group 
Roy Beddard Welsh Harp Conservation Group 
Harry Mackie Welsh Harp Environmental Education 

Centre 
Julia Touloumbadjian Welsh Harp Sailing Association 
Judy Shepherd West Hendon Community Forum 
Geoffrey Johnson Woolmead Residents' Association 
Jon Guest British Waterways 
Brain Turner Training Ship Broadsword 
 
 



 

 

Agenda 
 
Introductions, if appropriate. 
 
Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members 
 

Item Page 
 

1 Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests  
 

 

 Members are invited to declare at this stage of the meeting, any relevant 
financial or other interest in the items on this agenda. 
 

 

2 Minutes of the previous meeting  
 

1 - 8 

3 Matters arising (if any)  
 

 

4 Thames 21 presentation  
 

 

5 Barratt Homes  
 

 

6 Management Plan (Brent)  
 

9 - 14 

7 Management Plan (Barnet) - Verbal update  
 

 

8 Environment Agency - Verbal Report  
 

 

9 Planning Issues (if any)  
 

 

10 Date of Next Meeting  
 

 

 The next scheduled meeting of the Welsh Harp JCC is on 21 March 2012. 
 

 

11 Any Other Urgent Business  
 

 

 Notice of items to be raised under this heading must be given in writing to 
the Democratic Services Manager or his representative before the 
meeting in accordance with Standing Order 64. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

� Please remember to SWITCH OFF your mobile phone during the meeting. 
• The meeting room is accessible by lift and seats will be provided for 

members of the public. 
• Toilets are available on the second floor. 
• Catering facilities can be found on the first floor near the Paul Daisley Hall. 
• A public telephone is located in the foyer on the ground floor, opposite the 

Porters’ Lodge 
 

 



 
MINUTES OF THE WELSH HARP JOINT CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, 9 November 2011 at 7.30 pm 
 

 
PRESENT:Councillors Ashraf (LB Brent) (Chair), Hart (LB Barnet) (Vice-Chair), Khatri 
(LB Barnet), Mashari (LB Brent) and Rayner (LB Barnet) and Neale Hider (Environment 
Agency), Molly Savage (Local Agenda 21), Clive Cohen (London Wildlife Trust), 
Roy Beddard (Welsh Harp Conservation Group), Judy Shepherd (West Hendon 
Community Forum), Geoffrey Johnson (Woolmead Residents' Association), Brian Turner 
(Training Ship Broadsword) and Derrick Chung (West Hendon Residents' Association / 
Friends of York Park) 

 
 

1. Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

2. Minutes of the previous meeting  
 
RESOLVED:- 
 
that the minutes of the previous meeting held on Tuesday 19 July 2011 be 
approved as an accurate record of the meeting. 
 

3. Matters arising (if any)  
 
Bank at former youth sailing base site 
Geoff Johnson (Woolmead Residents’ Association) advised that the condition of the 
bank next to the marketing centre had worsened since the date of the last meeting. 
He added that should anyone wish to contact Barratt Homes direct regarding the 
issue, he could provide them with the relevant email address. The Chair noted that 
there was an item on the agenda relating to this issue. 
 
Crop Protection Association (CPA) leaflet regarding insecticides 
Clive Cohen (London Wildlife Trust) noted that he had advised at the previous 
meeting that he had liaised with property services to ensure that a CPA leaflet was 
distributed to libraries and relevant properties and further to this, had recommended 
to the CPA that they should pursue a similar strategy with other local authorities. As 
an update on this issue, Clive Cohen informed the committee that the CPA had 
approached other councils and been successful in distributing the leaflet in this 
way. 
 
Treatment of invasive species  
Clive Cohen queried of Neale Hider (Environment Agency) what the recommended 
approach was to the treatment of Japanese Knotweed. Neale Hider advised that 
there were only two herbicide/insecticide treatments for Japanese Knotweed which 
could legally be used within the United Kingdom in areas within close proximity to 

Apologies were received from: Councillors Johnson (LB Barnet) and Harry Mackie 
(Welsh Harp Environmental Education Centre) 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



 
 
 

Welsh Harp Joint Consultative Committee - 9 November 2011 

waterways or bodies of water.  Neale Hider advised that he could forward a written 
response to this issue to the committee. Councillor Rayner (LB Barnet) sought 
confirmation that Barnet council’s approach to treating Japanese Knotweed was in 
accordance with the advice of the Environment Agency. Neale Hider asserted that it 
was and explained that local authorities were required to submit an application to 
carry out such treatments. These applications required that the location and date for 
these proposed treatments were specified. Both Barnet Council and Brent Council 
had submitted applications as necessary for works that they wished to complete. 
Clive Cohen reiterated his concern that the chemicals contained within these 
treatments contaminated the food chain. He noted that the most likely way for this 
to occur would be via honey bees and queried whether the treatments took place 
prior to the flowering season. Neale Hider advised that Himalayan Balsam did not 
require any treatment but added that as it was one of the richest nectar sources in 
Europe currently. Japanese Knotweed did require treatment as it both spread 
vegetativley and could cause damage to buildings and other structures.  Giant 
Hogweed also required treatment as it represented both an environmental issue 
and a health and safety concern. The Chair thanked Neale Hider for his 
contribution. The committee was asked to forward any further queries regarding this 
issue to the Chair at cllr.javaid.ashraf@brent.gov.uk; he would then liaise with 
Neale Hider to follow these up.  
 
Cool Oak Lane Bridge  
Geoff Johnson informed the committee that the issue regarding Cool Oak Lane 
Bridge was on-going. The committee was reminded that this issue related to the 
use of Cool Oak Lane Bridge by heavily loaded Lorries seeking to access the site 
which had previously been occupied by Hendon Nursery. The material being 
carried by these uncovered Lorries was being distributed during transit in the form 
of dust over the surrounding area.  Geoff Johnson added that the problem was now 
being addressed by Barnet’s Planning department who had issued an enforcement 
notice to the company using the site. An appeal had been submitted against this 
notice and was currently being considered by the Planning Inspectorate. The Chair 
noted that it was suggested at the last meeting of the committee that complaints on 
this issue should be sent to Barnet Council. The Chair queried of Jenny Warren 
(Greenspaces Services Manager, LB Barnet) whether she had received any 
feedback regarding complaints about this issue; Jenny Warren advised that she 
had not. Geoff Johnson added that there was a weight limit of 7.5 tons for the 
bridge and there were concerns of the physical damage being caused to the bridge. 
Judy Shepherd (West Hendon Community Forum) advised that the bridge was of 
historic value. Neale Hider added that if members of the committee would forward 
him further details of the materials being transported by the company, he would 
check these with the relevant team at the Environment Agency. The Chair added 
that he would liaise with Neale Hider regarding this issue if members wished to 
email him with any further information regarding this issue. Geoff Johnson added 
that the dust was detrimental to the health of residents and bird / animal life in the 
surrounding area and Councillor Julie Johnson had complained about this.  
 
Environmental Impact Survey / Contamination of waterways 
It was noted that it had been agreed at the previous meeting that it should be 
ascertained whether testing of waterways still took place and an update was sought 

Page 2



 
 
 

Welsh Harp Joint Consultative Committee - 9 November 2011 

in relation to this. Neale Hider advised that he would address this issue during his 
verbal report to the committee.  
 
Clive Cohen commented that it was important that the quality of the water was 
regularly tested to enable any pollution of the waterways, particularly from the Brent 
Cross Development, to be tracked. Clive Cohen further commented that in previous 
years there had been a significant pollution issue caused by unmonitored cess pits 
and faulty household connections in and around Totteridge, Barnet. This was 
significant for the Welsh Harp area as the waterways in Totteridge flowed into the 
Welsh Harp. Neale Hider advised that this was an issue for Thames Water to 
address. Neale Hider further advised that Thames Water had recently conducted an 
area wide survey of sewers in the Totteridge area, following two incidents which 
had occurred in this area and which had been reported to them by the Environment 
Agency. Clive Cohen reiterated that testing needed to be on-going. Neale Hider 
informed the committee that if they became aware of any pollution incidents they 
could call the Freephone twenty-four hour emergency hotline number (0800 
807060) and these reported incidents would be investigated. If members of the 
committee had any general queries they could contact the Environment Agency via 
the general enquiries telephone number (03708 506 506 [Mon-Fri, 8am - 6pm]) or 
email enquiries@environment-agency.gov.uk. It was agreed that a letter would be 
written to Thames Water to obtain an update on this issue. 
 

4. Membership application  
 
Bank at former youth sailing base site 
Geoff Johnson (Woolmead Residents’ Association) advised that the condition of the 
bank next to the marketing centre had worsened since the date of the last meeting. 
He added that should anyone wish to contact Barratt Homes direct regarding the 
issue, he could provide them with the relevant email address. The Chair noted that 
there was an item on the agenda relating to this issue. 
 
Crop Protection Association (CPA) leaflet regarding insecticides 
Clive Cohen (London Wildlife Trust) noted that he had advised at the previous 
meeting that he had liaised with property services to ensure that a CPA leaflet was 
distributed to libraries and relevant properties and further to this, had recommended 
to the CPA that they should pursue a similar strategy with other local authorities. As 
an update on this issue, Clive Cohen informed the committee that the CPA had 
approached other councils and been successful in distributing the leaflet in this 
way. 
 
Treatment of invasive species  
Clive Cohen queried of Neale Hider (Environment Agency) what the recommended 
approach was to the treatment of Japanese Knotweed. Neale Hider advised that 
there were only two herbicide treatments for Japanese Knotweed which could 
legally be used within the United Kingdom in areas within close proximity to 
waterways or bodies of water.  Neale Hider advised that he could forward a written 
response to this issue to the committee. Councillor Rayner (LB Barnet) sought 
confirmation that Barnet council’s approach to treating Japanese Knotweed was in 
accordance with the advice of the Environment Agency. Neale Hider asserted that it 
was and explained that local authorities were required to submit an application to 

Page 3



 
 
 

Welsh Harp Joint Consultative Committee - 9 November 2011 

carry out such treatments. These applications required that the location and date for 
these proposed treatments were specified. Both Barnet Council and Brent Council 
had submitted applications as necessary for works that they wished to complete. 
Clive Cohen reiterated his concern that the chemicals contained within these 
treatments contaminated the food chain. He noted that the most likely way for this 
to occur would be via honey bees and queried whether the treatments took place 
prior to the flowering season. Neale Hider advised that Himalayan Balsam did not 
require any treatment but added that as it was one of the richest nectar sources in 
Europe currently. Japanese Knotweed did require treatment as it both spread 
vegetativley and could cause damage to buildings and other structures.  Giant 
Hogweed also required treatment as it represented both an environmental issue 
and a health and safety concern. The Chair thanked Neale Hider for his 
contribution. The committee was asked to forward any further queries regarding this 
issue to the Chair at cllr.javaid.ashraf@brent.gov.uk; he would then liaise with 
Neale Hider to follow these up.  
 
Cool Oak Lane Bridge  
Geoff Johnson informed the committee that the issue regarding Cool Oak Lane 
Bridge was on-going. The committee was reminded that this issue related to the 
use of Cool Oak Lane Bridge by heavily loaded Lorries seeking to access the site 
which had previously been occupied by Hendon Nursery. The material being 
carried by these uncovered Lorries was being distributed during transit in the form 
of dust over the surrounding area.  Geoff Johnson added that the problem was now 
being addressed by Barnet’s Planning department who had issued an enforcement 
notice to the company using the site. An appeal had been submitted against this 
notice and was currently being considered by the Planning Inspectorate. The Chair 
noted that it was suggested at the last meeting of the committee that complaints on 
this issue should be sent to Barnet Council. The Chair queried of Jenny Warren 
(Greenspaces Services Manager, LB Barnet) whether she had received any 
feedback regarding complaints about this issue; Jenny Warren advised that she 
had not. Geoff Johnson added that there was a weight limit of 7.5 tons for the 
bridge and there were concerns of the physical damage being caused to the bridge. 
Judy Shepherd (West Hendon Community Forum) advised that the bridge was of 
historic value. Neale Hider added that if members of the committee would forward 
him further details of the materials being transported by the company, he would 
check these with the relevant team at the Environment Agency. The Chair added 
that he would liaise with Neale Hider regarding this issue if members wished to 
email him with any further information regarding this issue. Geoff Johnson added 
that the dust was detrimental to the health of residents and bird / animal life in the 
surrounding area and Councillor Julie Johnson had complained about this.  
 
Environmental Impact Survey / Contamination of waterways 
It was noted that it had been agreed at the previous meeting that it should be 
ascertained whether testing of waterways still took place and an update was sought 
in relation to this. Neale Hider advised that he would address this issue during his 
verbal report to the committee.  
 
Clive Cohen commented that it was important that the quality of the water was 
regularly tested to enable any pollution of the waterways, particularly from the Brent 
Cross Development, to be tracked. Clive Cohen further commented that in previous 

Page 4



 
 
 

Welsh Harp Joint Consultative Committee - 9 November 2011 

years there had been a significant pollution issue caused by unmonitored cess pits 
and faulty household connections in and around Totteridge, Barnet. This was 
significant for the Welsh Harp area as the waterways in Totteridge flowed into the 
Welsh Harp. Neale Hider advised that this was an issue for Thames Water to 
address. Neale Hider further advised that Thames Water had recently conducted an 
area wide survey of sewers in the Totteridge area, following two incidents which 
had occurred in this area and which had been reported to them by the Environment 
Agency. Clive Cohen reiterated that testing needed to be on-going. Neale Hider 
informed the committee that if they became aware of any pollution incidents they 
could call the Freephone twenty-four hour emergency hotline number (0800 
807060) and these reported incidents would be investigated. If members of the 
committee had any general queries they could contact the Environment Agency via 
the general enquiries telephone number (03708 506 506 [Mon-Fri, 8am - 6pm]) or 
email enquiries@environment-agency.gov.uk. It was agreed that a letter would be 
written to Thames Water to obtain an update on this issue. 
 

5. Barratt Homes development  
 
The Chair advised the committee that a representative of Barratt Homes would not 
be attending the current meeting to discuss the condition of the bank next to the 
Barratt Homes marketing suite at the site of the former youth sailing base. Jenny 
Warren (Greenspaces Services Manager – LB Barnet) explained that there were 
two different contacts for Barratt Homes each with different areas of responsibility. If 
members wished to raise specific questions in advance of a meeting these could be 
forwarded to the relevant person. The Chair noted that it had been agreed at the 
last meeting of the committee that any questions members had regarding this issue 
would be forwarded to him by email; however, he had received no communications 
on this subject. The secretary to the committee added that at present Barratt homes 
had indicated that they were unable to answer any specific queries as they were in 
the process of renegotiating with the Planning department in Barnet regarding the 
area; however, they hoped to attend the next meeting of the committee in the New 
Year at which time further details regarding the new arrangements could be 
provided.  
 
RESOLVED: -  
 
i. that queries regarding the bank next to the Barratt Homes marketing suite at 

the former youth sailing base site be emailed to the Chair at 
javaid.ashraf@brent.gov.uk  
 

ii. that Barratt Homes be invited to attend the next meeting of the committee 
scheduled for January 2012. 

 
6. Environment Agency - verbal report  

 
Neil Hider (Environment Agency) advised that his colleague had requested this 
agenda item but was not able to bring the report to the committee as he had hoped. 
Consequently, this item would be presented to the committee at its next meeting.  
 
 

Page 5



 
 
 

Welsh Harp Joint Consultative Committee - 9 November 2011 

Water quality – waterways and bodies of water in the Welsh Harp area. 
Neil Hider advised the committee that he had liaised with the water quality team at 
the environment agency who had informed him that there had been no water 
sampling carried out within the Welsh Harp for the last 20 years. However, regular 
water quality tests had been conducted from silt within the Brent catchment up until 
2006. This process had now been usurped by the European Union Water 
Framework Directive. The aim of this directive was to improve the water courses 
across Europe by 2015 and the environment agency would be working with partner 
agencies to achieve this.  
 
The Environment Agency had continued to carry out sampling on waterways which 
flowed in to the Welsh Harp. Information regarding the results of this testing was 
publically available. It was agreed that this information could be circulated to 
members of the committee.  
 
It was intended that automated water quality monitoring points would be established 
in the Brent catchment. Neil Hider explained that there was not sufficient manpower 
to carry out regular testing of a high number of waterways and testing was usually 
carried out for specific purposes only such as to test for Blue-Green Algae . Further 
details regarding these automated monitoring points could be provided at the next 
meeting of the committee.  
 
The Chair requested that it would be useful to have a report on what tests had been 
carried out to-date at the next meeting of the committee.  
 
A member of the committee noted that testing had been carried out for killer shrimp 
and queried what the results of this were. Neale Hider advised that these tests were 
currently on going.  
 
RESOLVED: -  
 
i. that the verbal report be noted 

 
ii. that an update on where and what tests had been conducted regarding the 

water quality of waterways and bodies within and affecting the Welsh Harp 
area be provided to the committee.  

 
7. Management Plan (Barnet)  

 
Jenny Warren (Greenspaces Services Manager – LB Barnet) presented a report to 
the committee updating members on the position of the Local Nature Reserve 
(LNR) and on-going site management.  
 
The committee was advised by Jenny Warren that there had been a recent issue 
regarding rough sleepers on the Barnet side of the LNR. This issue had been 
referred to the safer neighbourhood team and the individuals in question had been 
referred to Barnet’s in-house priority intervention team.  
 
Turning to the subject of the West Hendon Regeneration, Jenny Warren advised 
that a Masterplan Review process had been initiated to address funding related 

Page 6



 
 
 

Welsh Harp Joint Consultative Committee - 9 November 2011 

viability issues. As part of this process, Barratt Metropolitan LLP would be required 
to submit a new planning application. Statutory consultations with organisations 
such as Transport for London (TfL), Natural England and British Waterways, would 
take place during the early stages of this process. A wider pre-planning application 
consultation would be held following this. With regard to the condition of the bank at 
the temporary sales centre, planting would be carried out in November 2011 in 
accordance with the scheme set out at Appendix 2 to the report. This planting 
scheme aimed to improve the environmental value of the edge of the Welsh Harp 
and would benefit waterfowl, the presence of which was important for the SSSI 
designation of the area. It was also a condition of existing Outline approval that an 
eight meter wide buffer strip was completed upon the cessation of the use of the 
site. The planting scheme set out the intention to provide a mature element to the 
vegetation forming this buffer strip.  
 
Jenny Warren informed the committee that the Welsh Harp area had benefited from 
the improvement project being implemented regarding the Dollis Valley Greenwalk. 
The Dollis Valley Greenwalk had been successful in obtaining £400k from the 
Mayor’s Help a London Park scheme and further funds amounting to £280k from 
Walk London and TfL. Under this project the Welsh Harp area had benefited 
through the eradication of invasive species and the improvement of water quality 
through the selective reduction of vegetation along the corridor. In addition, the 
improvement of signage along the corridor identified a walking route which included 
the Welsh Harp and further to this, identified the site itself as a location to visit.  
 
During the committee’s discussion several issues were raised.  The Chair queried 
when the West Hendon Project was scheduled to be completed. Jenny Warren 
advised that the deadline for completion was twenty years hence.  
 
RESOLVED: -  
 
That the report be noted. 
 

8. Management Plan (Brent)  
 
Leslie Williams presented a report to the committee setting out the progress on the 
Brent Reservoir / Welsh Plan Management Plan. The Committee was advised that 
a new version of the map detailing the different zones for the Welsh Harp had been 
devised and circulated to committee members.  
 
The report updated the committee on several issues raised at the previous meeting. 
With regard to the issue of water pollution through misconnections, it was expected 
that most misconnections would remain on private land upstream of the water 
company’s direct responsibility. Turning to the subject of the treatment of Japanese 
knotweed, it was highlighted that the most recent advice from British Waterways, 
regulatory agencies and the Environment Agency was that those agencies would 
not approve the foliar (spray) application of herbicide within a site of special 
scientific interest (SSSI). Treatment by Stem Injection had been used by Barnet 
council in recent years and would be used within and near to the SSSI at Neasden 
Recreation Ground by Brent Council in partnership with the Environment Agency 
and the Welsh Harp Conservation Group.  

Page 7



 
 
 

Welsh Harp Joint Consultative Committee - 9 November 2011 

 
Neale Hider advised that the Environment Agency had provided funds of £5k which 
had been put towards tree maintenance works in Barnet. And maintenance work for 
Neasden Recreation Ground. Roy Beddard advised that the tree maintenance 
works would start the following week and would be complete within two weeks. A 
key aim of the work was to protect and create favourable conditions for the 
underlying reed beds to prosper/expand. Reed beds were a priority habitat both 
locally and nationally. The tree maintenance works were conducted on a four/five 
year cycle and were carried out by contractors due to the highly skilled nature of the 
work.  
 
During the subsequent discussion, the committee raised a number of issues. 
Councillor Rayner suggested that funding opportunities via the Mayor of London 
should be explored. The Chair advised that the independent charity, ‘Trees for 
Cities’ worked with local communities on tree planting projects in urban areas and 
might be able to assist with the tree maintenance works that were co-ordinated by 
the Welsh Harp Conservation Group. 

 

The Chair queried what determined the boundaries of the zones set out on the map 
of the Welsh Harp and was advised that the zones echoed those established by the 
committee previously. Roy Beddard advised that initially the zones demarked 
different habitat areas and were established to facilitate the management plan; 
however these boundaries were no longer relevant. It was commented that the 
zones should reflect the type of management activity that was carried out in the 
area. Leslie Williams noted that he would feed these comments back. 

RESOLVED: -  
 
that the report be noted.  
 

9. Planning Issues (if any)  
 
There were no Planning Issues. 
 

10. Date of Next Meeting  
 
The date of the next meeting was scheduled for 10 January 2012. 
 

11. Any Other Urgent Business  
 
There was no urgent business.  
 
 

The meeting closed at 9.10 pm 
 
 
J ASHRAF 
Chair 

Page 8



Meeting: Welsh Harp Joint Consultative 
Committee 
Date: 10 January 2012 

Version no. 2 
Date: 16.12.2011 

 

 Welsh Harp Joint Consultative 
Committee 
10 January 2012 

Report from the Director of 
Environment and Neighbourhood 
Services 

For Information 
 

  
Wards Affected: 
ALL 

  

Welsh Harp Management Plan 

 
Forward Plan Ref:   

 
1.0 Summary 
 
1.1  This report presents progress on the Brent Reservoir / Welsh Harp 

Management Plan.  The Management Plan is jointly managed by the 
three main local land-holding organisations: Brent Council, British 
Waterways, and the London Borough of Barnet.   

 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1  Members are asked to note the Report. 
 
 
3.0 Detail 
 

Welsh Harp / Brent Reservoir Management Plan 
 
3.1 The Welsh Harp / Brent Reservoir Management Plan is available on 

the internet at the Brent Council website www.Brent.gov.uk/parks   
 
3.2 At the previous meeting of the Welsh Harp Joint Consultative 

Committee on 9 November 2011, it was suggested that the mapped 
zones of the Management Plan be updated to better reflect the current 
management needs of the area.  That would appear feasible and 
consequently the Management Plan document could be revised into a 
more useable format.  A draft map and Management Plan will be 
presented to a future meeting of the Committee.   

  
 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 9



Meeting: Welsh Harp Joint Consultative 
Committee 
Date: 10 January 2012 

Version no. 2 
Date: 16.12.2011 

 

Management works 
 
3.3 Information on the habitats of the Brent Reservoir is available in the 

Brent Biodiversity Action Plan on the Biodiversity Action Reporting 
System website which is the online system for national reporting of 
Biodiversity Action Plans: see 

 http://ukbars.defra.gov.uk/ 
 
 Information for Barnet can also be accessed on the same site. 
  
3.4 Maintenance of the Heritage Lottery Fund award project continues.   
 

Events / Other 
 
3.5 Brent Council Sports Service and Welsh Harp Environmental Education 

Centre: The Healthy Walks Programme continues to March 2012.  
Walks meet at the Welsh Harp Open Space car park, Birchen Grove, 
every Thursday (except on Bank / Public Holidays) from 10am-11am.  
The walks are ‘low to moderate’ in pace.    For details contact Brent 
Council Sports Service, tel: 020 8937 3707, www. Brent.gov.uk/sports   

 
3.6 Capital Ring:  Stocks of the leaflets are available from Barnet, and 

Brent Councils.   
 
4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 None specific, but some of the priorities identified in the Management 

Plan will require additional resources and decisions by, as appropriate, 
Brent Council, Barnet Council or British Waterways, if they are to be 
implemented in the future.  For Brent Council Sports and Parks 
Service, the Welsh Harp Management Plan is implemented and 
improvements programmed via the Council’s Corporate Strategy, 
service strategies and operational plans.  Thus implementation is 
partially dependent upon revenue and capital budgets for grounds 
maintenance and for parks management.  The Sports and Parks 
Service pursues other sources of finance and opportunities for 
partnership working that may become available.   

 
4.2 Financial implications of restructuring proposals are detailed in other 

Council reports. 
 
5.0 Legal Implications 

5.1 Under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 as amended by  the 
Countryside and Rights of Way (CROW) Act 2000 and the Natural 
Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act 2006, land owners 
or occupiers are required to give notice to and consult with Natural 
England where they wish to carry out, or cause or permit to be carried  

Page 10



Meeting: Welsh Harp Joint Consultative 
Committee 
Date: 10 January 2012 

Version no. 2 
Date: 16.12.2011 

 

out any operation in an area of land that is of special interest by reason 
of any of its flora, fauna, or geological or physiographical features (this 
requirement applies to operations within a SSSI, and to operations 
outside the SSSI that may affect the features of interest);  and Natural 
England will issue consent, issue consent with conditions or refuse 
consent. CROW (and section 28G of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 
1981) places a duty on all public bodies to take reasonable steps, 
consistent with the proper exercise of the authority’s functions, to 
further the conservation and enhancement of the site. 

 5.2 It is good practice for land owners or occupiers to produce 
Management Plans for the SSSI, which when approved by Natural 
England, enable the carrying out of the works specified in the 
Management Plan.  This can reduce the administrative work inherent in 
obtaining consent for individual items of management work.  

 
5.3 The Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 requires 
 that from 1 October 2006 all public authorities in England and Wales 
 have a general duty to have regard to the conservation of biodiversity 
 so far as is consistent with the proper exercise of their functions. 
 
6.0 Diversity Implications 
 
6.1 The proposals in this report have been subject to screening and 

officers believe that there are no diversity implications. 
 
6.2 An Equalities Impact Assessment was prepared in relation to the 

proposals for the restructuring of the Warden Service. 
 
7.0 Staffing/Accommodation Implications 
 
7.1 None specific. 
 
8.0 Environmental Implications 
 
8.1 The Welsh Harp Management Plan co-ordinates environmental works 

in the Reservoir area.      
 
Background Papers 
 
Dated correspondence and other documents referred to in the Report 
including: 
 
Brent Reservoir / Welsh Harp Management Plan. 
 
Equality Impact Assessment Completion Form: Welsh Harp Joint Consultative 
Committee: Welsh Harp Reservoir Management Plan: 20 January 2005. Form 
dated 06b.01.2005.  
 
 

Page 11



Meeting: Welsh Harp Joint Consultative 
Committee 
Date: 10 January 2012 

Version no. 2 
Date: 16.12.2011 

 

Contact Officers 
 
Any person wishing to inspect the above papers should contact Leslie 
Williams, Strategy and Service Development Officer, Sports and Parks Service, 
Environment and Neighbourhood Services, Brent Council,  
Brent House, 349-357 High Road, Wembley, Middlesex HA9 6BZ 
 
Tel: 020 8937 5628, Reception: 020 8937 5619, Fax: 020 8937 5715  
 
E-mail: Leslie.Williams@Brent.gov.uk, Internet: www.Brent.gov.uk/parks 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sue Harper:  
Director of Environment and 
Neighbourhood Services 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



P
age 13



P
age 14

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	6 Management Plan (Brent)
	ZonesMap Nov2011


